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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:
. (gavel). . . Aloha and good afternoon. Welcome to our
Planning Committee meeting. This afternoon we have present Members and...Michael
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good afternoon, Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And Member Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. We also have with us from our Department
of Corporation Counsel, Mr. Michael Hopper.
MR. HOPPER: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good afternoon. And next to Mr. Hopper is our Planning
Director, Mr. Hunt, Jeff Hunt.
MR. HUNT: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. And we have our Planner Simone Bosco.
MS. BOSCO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: To my left our Staff, Mr. David Raatz is our Legislative
Attorney, and we have Clarita Balala, who is our Committee Secretary. And also we
have arriving is our Committee Vice-Chair, Member Jo Anne Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha. And as we move along here attending also for our
meeting this afternoon is Member Wayne Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning...oh, good afternoon.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We will begin with public testimony and, in a few
moments. I wish, for those wishing to testify, if you have not, you should sign up here at
the Secretary's desk here. Testimony will be limited to three minutes. Testifiers are
requested to state their name and, for the record and to indicate who they represent.
Members, today we have two items on our agenda. We have PC-13 which is Flood
Hazard Areas, and we have PC-2 which is the General Plan Update. Our first item is
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PC-13 relating to flood hazard areas. We have received a bill from the Department of
Planning entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19.62,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO FLOOD HAZARD AREAS". The purpose
of the bill is to update the County's Flood Hazard Areas regulations as required by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency and to incorporate a new online digital flood
insurance rate maps. We just received this bill at the August 7 th Council meeting. I have
scheduled it at its first available opportunity in response to the urgent request from the,
both the Department of Planning and the Mayor's Office. So after testimony I'll ask the
Department to explain the time sensitivity of this matter and to provide overview of the
bill.
We'll now begin with the public testimony on Item Number PC-13 and then for those
who cannot wait until the second item is called for PC-2 as well. So the Committee will
now accept public testimony. Each testifier will have again three minutes. So we will
begin now with public testimony and the first one signed up for testimony is
Mr. Paul Currier.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MR. CURRIER: Good afternoon and thank you for allowing me to testify. My name is Paul
Currier. For the record last name, C-u-r-r-i-e-r. I'm a licensed civil engineer here in
Hawaii as well as in Colorado, and I've spent the last 30 years working with floodplain
issues. And I commend the Council for looking at the idea of passing this resolution just
knowing how the flood insurance program works. But I also want to alert you to the fact
that there's already changes in the midst of the...this program even though it's already
being, won't actually be approved and finalized until September by FEMA. It's just a
formality but what happens after that date is, unfortunately, they're going to get flooded
with requests for changing the technical data of it. It's just how the FEMA process
happens to work. It's not very clean in my opinion, but it is very formal and if you wait it
out over a period of years it actually works. But needless to say I'm representing Mark
Miller on, on Waikapu Stream and looked at the maps, the old FEMA maps versus the
new ones and have discovered some discrepancies which we're going to have to talk to
FEMA about and try to figure out how to, how to get those changed. And FEMA does
have a very formal process which I've gone through a number of times. Like I said, it
works. So just want to leave you with two things. One is you need to proceed, I agree
with that, and then secondly, revisions are going to happen pretty rapidly. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Currier. Members, are there any questions for
the testifier? Okay. Seeing none, then thank you.
MR. CURRIER: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Our second testifier is Mr. Jim Smith.
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MR. SMITH: Chair Kaho'ohalahala, Members of the Committee, my name is Jim Smith. I am
here to testify and express my concerns about the General Plan update. First, an article in
the paper, covering it first, expressed the idea that there was confusion in the presentation
that was before you. And I think that that marks a lot of things that have happened in this
County for the last eight years, and it seems that in the absence of, of clarity and in the
presence of confusion, you have directors doing what they want to do basically. I
understand that and again I don't know if this is true or not, but the General Plan that is in
existence I understand is not being applied. It's, it's not going to be applied until we
have a new one, and that was the idea that was expressed in the paper from the Planning
Director which to me is really creating calamity.
The confusion that's created can easily be clarified. If you look at your Countywide
Planning Policy you have in it a thing called implementing actions. Now the existing
General Plan does not have implementing actions or actions. It's a general plan. The
Community Plans have the specific implementing actions and that's where they belong.
So if you were simply to eliminate from this process any implementing actions, then I
think you would simplify and make it clear. That's just the technical point. But the
problem again is that the confusion created with Bill 84 and the subsequent revision has
to be addressed. We are avoiding certain problems that need to be addressed. The words
mean nothing if the Planning Director is not going to apply them.
The bed and breakfast, the Planning Director and Mayor said they weren't going to apply
them. That's the problem that needs to be resolved. And we don't resolve that problem
then we're going to pretend and we're all going to feel good and we're going to look at
slides and everything. At the end of the day there'll be an empty, hollow confusion. And
following that comes fear, and following that comes fascism, a different form of
government. It comes after we have confusion and you're right in the midst of confusion.
So I would ask you, please straighten things out so people are not confused. Aloha.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Smith. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Okay. Seeing none, then thank you. Okay. Is there anyone here that hasn't
signed up to testify that would like to sign, testify? Please come forward. And for the
record state your name and then who you represent, and then you can fill out a form when
you're completed with your testimony.
MR. MADDEN: Aloha. everyone. Thanks for the opportunity to speak. My name is
Ramon K. Madden and I'm representing the citizens of West Maui. A simple look at the
demographics of, of West Maui will tell you that we're already a extremely overburdened
infrastructure. I'm, I'm not telling you anything you don't know of course. And the
reason for this, in my opinion and correct me if I'm wrong, lies with the previous
developments to West Maui starting with the early '70s. At that time, we had our
Constitutional Convention, that I'm sure you're all aware of, when the community was
asked what they wanted, and a plan was made at that time. They asked the kupuna and
they asked the people who lived there what was the best plan, so they decided to
designate areas for tourism and areas for agriculture. They voted to adopt this plan not as
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a community plan that they would opt out of by, by not showing up to these meetings, but
they chose to vote for that. The plan included roads, schools, hospitals, sewage, parks
and in it, to a level that would be adequate to sustain the development plan. In my
opinion they, they failed. The developers may be different now, but the landowners are
the same. The transformation from agriculture to real estate is something that I
personally I'm, I'm shocked when I look at the, at the maps. I don't see the same West
Maui that I live in now, and I don't believe that we're asking adequate feedback from the
tourism industry and from the tourists themselves. Because what affects them affects us,
and their decision to, to visit here instead of Diamond Head or Waikiki is based on the, a
lot of the open spaces, to me. And I, being in the tourist industry, I'd really like to see
that we don't accidentally kill the goose that laid the golden egg.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Are you completed?
MR. MADDEN: That, that's all. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Madden, nice to see you.
Thank you for being here and for testifying.
MR. MADDEN: Thank you for the opportunity.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Did you have opportunities to attend some of the meetings
and give some input and raise concerns about, you know, what was the direction that the
committee was taking, the GPAC? And did you have opportunities to attend any of the
public meetings?
MR. MADDEN: Absolutely, sir. I did take around a petition that I had people sign. The reason
why I had a petition was because I felt that a Sunday notice for a Tuesday meeting on the
second day of school at 1:30 wasn't a proper notice for the general public. When, when I
went around to people in my neighborhood, I said have you heard about this plan, do you
know what it entails? They said no. I said, well, look at the map, your entire community
is gone. My whole neighborhood is not on the map as far as the General Plan goes. That
means everyone will be displaced. They were totally unaware of that, how much it
would affect them. So I went around with a petition. What I found was that only one out
of ten would...people that were there would sign the petition, because the other nine said
they had a conflicting reason for being there. If that's the case, then I would say that out
of the 20,000 people that are estimated to live on the West Side we had less than
one percent show up to that meeting. Very, very disappointing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So with that process that you were engaged in, were you
able to submit that to the GPAC for consideration?
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MR. MADDEN: Yes, sir. I was and very, very appreciative of that. In, in my opinion, with the,
with the GPAC planning committee it sort of reminds of an old joke that somebody used
to say about -- it's not really funny but -- buying a car. You say so what kind of a car do
you want, Bill? So you would say I want one with four wheels and I want one that's red.
So I come back and say, well, here's your, here's your yellow car. It has four wheels but
it's better than the green one. The idea would be that instead of asking people's opinion
to formulate a plan, he has to do that, no problem with that, but at the end to perhaps lay
out the plan so that people could approve it in the end result. And I do see that we have
the potential for that happening. I would just like to make sure that, that happens and
that's why I'm here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, Mr. Madden, mahalo for your testimony and for, you
know, engaging yourself in the government and public process. Appreciate seeing you
here this afternoon. Okay. Mahalo, Chair.
MR. MADDEN: And thanks again, everyone, for the opportunity to be here.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions, Members? Okay. Seeing none, thank
you very much. Okay. Members, Chair would like to just take an opportunity also to
acknowledge in the audience, I'm sorry, Mr. Francis Cerizo, who is here from the
Planning Department and will be doing a presentation on our PC-13 item, Flood Hazard
Areas and so I want to acknowledge his presence in the audience. So if there are no
objections, then Chair would like to close public testimony at this time.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I would like to take a, let's see, three minute recess. And what
we're going to do is we're going to drop the screen down and Mr. Cerizo is going to
make a presentation on PC-13. So short recess. . . . (gavel)..
RECESS:

1:46 p.m.

RECONVENE: 1:49 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:
. (gavel). . . Okay. Our Planning Committee will now
reconvene. Here from the Planning Department is Mr. Cerizo, who's going to be making
a presentation on the Flood Hazard Areas, on item PC-13. So, Mr. Cerizo.
ITEM NO. 13: FLOOD HAZARD AREAS (C.C. No 09-219)
MR. CERIZO: Good afternoon, Council Chair and Members of the Council. Today's
presentation on Flood Hazards ordinance, well, I just want to give a little history. It's, the
ordinance was originally adopted in 1981, our first draft. And it was mandated by
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Congress, required by FEMA, that we participate in the, in the National Flood Insurance
program. And back in 1981 just as now, you know, failure to participate in the program
would result in denial of Federal financial assistance. It could jeopardize our, our, of
making and the securing loans from lending institutions that are supported by the
government. So that's where the urgency is. We have a deadline of September 25 th .
That's the effective date of the ordinance, I mean the effective date of the map to have
this ordinance enacted. And I'd like to apologize firstly that, that we couldn't have
brought it earlier, but we had some unanticipated delays at the Planning Commission
level. But however, the, the benefits of this ordinance is, is twofold. One is that we
would have a program that would be in conformance to the National Flood Insurance
program and, and its benefits. And also we are currently a member of the, the program's
Community Rating System where we realize a, a savings in premium savings by our
12,000 floodplain insured. We have a savings of approximately half a million dollars
currently, and with the adoption of these rules we will have a added savings up to
$1 million on annual, on an annual basis. That was my short overview.
One of the things that I'd like to show first is the, our new flood maps. It's an online
version. We're going to through our public review process of informing the people of
the, the impacts of the, of the ordinance changes and the, the 36 amendments. Some of
them are mandatory and some of them are added, and we call it added value and that's
part of the CRS, Community Rating System program. So firstly we're going to take a
look at our flood maps. We have a, a little break from the...we're looking at Kihei. This
is near Maui Coast Hotel and I believe this is where the Coast Hotel is. And this shows a
varied amount of flood zones. We have a zone VE which is a coastal flooding and we
have an area that is riverine flooding. And this, this area here is considered the
floodplain, and the dark blue is considered the area that is a floodway where the majority
of the flood is, is carried. The flood fringe is the lower velocity or the outer banks of the,
of the floodplain area. And then we have areas that's zoned as XS, which is X-shaded
and that is for the 500-year flood. So they're just there for informational purposes. The
maps are, are live online right now. We're looking at a live view. And they have several
layers that's available. You can just take a look at it. But we have topography that's
available. We have a, excuse me, we also have the new map that's going to be coming
out, oops, which is the, a hurricane, hurricane study. So that's there for informational
purposes and we have imagery also. So when someone wants to look at their parcel you
can actually get into better detail just zooming in and it provides much more detail than
we currently have.
So the, the plan itself went through three Planning Commissions. We did Molokai, Lanai
and Maui. We had Molokai twice. They had, we had a meeting that actually we
expected to get, get passed through but the, the item in front of us got a little longer, a
simple permit that lasted for three hours and had to be pushed back to the next meeting.
We also had an outreach, public outreaches. We had one on Maui the latter part of
December and on Molokai twice. And some of these areas we thought it was very
important that the people are notified and we sent out more than 1,400 notices to
individual property owners. The, many of these will have impacts on, on their insurance
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policies and their cost. And with these outreaches we hope to be able to grandfather
some of the property owners to the older rate and if, if they obtain their insurance prior to
September 25 th
So over the next month and a half or so, we're, we're planning to go to Molokai another
time, and we're going to do one in Hana which has, several properties are being affected.
FEMA published their maps last year and there was an appeal period for maps if people
felt that their maps were erroneous or there was some errors in it. No appeals were filed;
however, lately we had Mr. Currier, who was one of our visitors here today, indicated
that he had some issues on the Waikapu Stream. We obtained his information. It was
submitted to us on, on, last week on Thursday and we have a conference this week with
FEMA, and we're going to start to talk, talking about the process on how to have those
maps re-looked at.
Of the 36 amendments many of these were just housekeeping. We changed Public
Works to Planning Department. There is some minor revisions but many of them were
FEMA required, and the, in fact, majority of them were either FEMA required or minor
revisions for housekeeping. The, the remaining, the remaining changes to the codes
were, were under our CRS or Community Rating System program. And many properties
on the County have, well, we have nearly, almost two dozen properties on the island that
are considered repetitive loss properties. And these properties the majority are outside of
the flood zone. And a repetitive loss property is a property that has been damaged in the
last ten years and the value of their damage is approximately 25 percent of their market
value. I'm not sure if people, I mean, Aleo Street in Kahului is a common area where,
this is a cul-de-sac, that's a low point, and for the last 30 years there have been attempts
to fix the problem. And lately they have installed on the left here these two pump
wellheads that can pump the water out more efficiently. But in the back, these houses in
the back used to get flooded, and it's more than two or three times in the past ten years.
So besides having the, the pumps in there they've actually raised the houses.
But we have properties in Kihei and also in Lahaina that are repetitive loss properties. So
the Code is going to require that since these projects are outside of the flood zone and
many of them we're requiring them to be included as one of the required...they, they'll
be required to improve their properties up to the flood zone standards even though they're
outside of the flood zone.
Another amendment that, that's CRS activity that gives us extra points is cumulative
costs for non-substantial improvements. This dwelling is, is in the V-zone. It's right next
to the coast and it, it appears that this, you know, there's, looks like there's more than one
addition from the original house. So in fact this, this part here was an after-the-fact
addition, and what we're trying to do is that currently accumulative costs, we look at only
if the building exceeds 50 percent and you will have to upgrade the building. So we
would, someone could come in this year and do 50 percent, then next year come in with
another 50 percent and eventually they'll have a brand new house. So the point is that if
the house is nonconforming we would like to have the improvements minimized, so what
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the proposal is, is to look over a ten-year period that they can exceed the 50 percent over
a ten-year period. So we would add the costs every year until you get 50 percent, and if
you wanted to go to the next step you would have to make the dwelling in compliance.
One of the challenges in the floodplain is development in the, in that area. We have, this
is considered the floodplain, like if you're down in Kihei, we have many areas where the
stream, you can see the stream where the water is, the dry bed. But in, in, in storm flows
it would span out much more than what you see on a normal basis. The, so we have the
area, the floodway which is the area that carries most of the, the storm runoff, and the
flood fringe area is the area that is lesser velocities and, and there's construction allowed
in that area.
What we are proposing as part of this amendment is that if we look at a natural
floodplain... if there's additional fill what happens is that it creates, it actually creates, it's
like, well, it creates additional flooding. So in this case here the more fill you put into the
floodplain it raises the water surface. So our proposal in the Code is to allow no fill
within the floodplain. If there is going to be fill, they would have to compensate by some
method so that the base flood elevation is kept at the same level.
The elevation requirement currently is to elevate the houses or dwellings up to or above
the base flood elevation. In this case here we have a base flood elevation. This is the
A-Zones which could be a riverine flooding or it could be coastal A-Zones where you
have lesser velocities. And on, on this case here the finish floor, the top of the finish
floor meets the base flood elevation. On V-Zones where you have coastal flooding the
requirement is to meet the bottom of the, of the lowest cross member has to be above or
at the base flood elevation. Our proposal, as recommended by FEMA, is to have
freeboard on both the A-Zones and the V-Zones. This allows for, in the V-Zones we
have at times, well, sea level rise is one of the issues and stoi ins are becoming more of a,
more intense. So that takes in account the actual wave action and the high velocities that
occur in the V-Zones. And in the A-Zones many of the maps were actually based on
hydrology and the terrain back in the '70s. And the, the extra base level, the extra
freeboard will assist in compensating the, the changes in the terrain or the hydrology.
This property is in a V-Zone and typically below the base flow elevation you're allowed
to have storage access and parking. We allow storage on the bottom and as long as the,
the walls are breakaway and it's used basically for storage only. It's been happening
more often that the conversions of the storage areas are, are occurring, so this
non-conversion agreement will actually put the homeowner on notice and as properties
are sold or passed on it can be better understood as that, the bottom should not be
converted. So we're having this agreement that will be recorded with the property so it
passes on to title. So the future owners like can be made aware that the bottom floor
cannot be used other than parking access and storage.
And our last added value on our CS [sic] program is additional flood data. As you can
see, these are our floodplains along the coast, and there's many areas above the urban
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core that is not, not mapped. So as areas become developed we're requiring that the
developer or the, well, the developer develop floodplains and ...(change tape, start
I B). . develop their, their construction to the current flood hazard ordinance. We feel
that the CRS program is a proactive way to mitigate future floods. It assists the County
in reduced floodplain costs for insurance purposes, and it protects the properties adjacent
to any development by minimizing the elevation of the flood heights. And it's, it's a
good program to expand on. Mahalo. If you have any questions, I'll be free to take them
now.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Cerizo. What we're going to do is take
a brief three minutes and we're going to raise the screen and then we'll open the floor for
questions.
MR. CERIZO: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Short recess. . . (gavel) .
RECESS:

2:07 p.m.

RECONVENE: 2:10 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: ... (gavel). . . Okay. Members, we will reconvene our
Planning Committee meeting. At this time, the Chair will open up the floor for questions
to the Planning Department on item PC-13, and Mr. Cerizo is here with the Department
Planning Director here. Questions? Oh. Let's, let's take a step back. I'm going to let
the Department do a brief a presentation on the bill that's before us and then we'll open
up the floor for questions. Okay.
MR. CERIZO: The ordinance is to revise the Flood Hazard District section of the Maui County
Code, Chapter 19.62. It's, the purpose of the bill is to upgrade our regulations to meet
the current standards of FEMA and also to also upgrade the...or improve our CRS
program so that we can, that would be like a starting point to go to the next step on
obtaining more CRS program's benefits.
One of the, one of the questions that might come up is, you know, what are the costs?
And, you know, the, one of the, one of the main costs is, you know, for a homeowner
would be to elevate the house. So that there, you know, we've been looking at
approximate cost, about $10,000 for filling the property one foot and for an average
house of 1,000 square foot. Another one is if you're elevating on post and pier it's about
$3,500 per foot. And if it's a taller building, if you had like a V-Zone construction that
cost would be almost doubled to about $8,000 for each, each foot.
There is a, I'm not sure if this is the time to...there's, there's a couple of changes that we
have on, on the ordinance and I'm not sure that's something that we can entertain now.
But the, the definitions on Page 7 of your Code that we identify Zones A and V and Zone
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D. We found that those, those changes were redundant; in fact, they're, the definitions
are in the flood insurance study that is being adopted in its entirety. So instead of having
only a partial zone definition the Council Staff, you know, questioned that, said why is,
why only these two zones being identified? And that was a good question and we're
proposing a amendment to remove Zones D and Zone A and V on Page 7 of the proposed
ordinance.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Mr. Cerizo, are you -MR. CERIZO: I'm done.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --complete?
MR. CERIZO: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Members, then at this time
questions for the Department? Member Johnson, followed by Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Cerizo, because I know many of the floodplain areas are in
Special Management Areas. We also have our SMA laws. We have our height
limitations. We have our grading ordinance which looks at how much fill can be added.
Because there...you know, I'm not a person who's used to looking at this and going,
yeah, that's in total compliance and consistent with what the height limitations would be,
and particularly like in Lahaina Historic District. Do you have any comment about the
consistency and the capability of somebody to maintain their insurance for Federal flood
and yet be consistent with the Coastal Zone Management Act, as well as Special
Management Area rules and regulations, and our other restrictions, like our shoreline
setback rules, everything else?
MR. CERIZO: Well, the flood zone as, as far as, as height allows a, there's an allowance for
height. There's a five foot, you actually can elevate your building another foot up to
five feet above the, the normal zoning code. So if there is, for example, you had to raise
your house extremely high, you know, we would give you up to five feet and, as an
allowance. And as, as it pertains to the SMA the, the requirement is that, you know, you
need to have consistency with both the County zoning which is, this is part of Title 19
which is the zoning ordinance and also the Community Plan. And unless the Community
Plan has some provisions, then I'm not sure if they, I don't think they do, you know, as
far as height. Consistency on the SMA rules should be met. Now Shoreline Rules that's,
those were, as far as, they're the, they're the same as far as SMA rules and the Shoreline
Rules, you know, you'd have to go through the impacts. And I don't think there is a
conflict between the two, between the ordinance, flood ordinance and the SMA rules. In
fact the, the, the assessment requires you to see that you have consistency with the Flood
Hazard Ordinance.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and the only reason I'm asking this is because we can be more
restrictive at the County level, but in being more restrictive many times we're
constrained. We're looking at similar footprints in the historic district. There are historic
district guidelines in Lahaina Town which is, you know, flooding area. So I just want to
make sure that while we're adopting this that it doesn't create an unintended consequence
of putting people, particularly if they're in a historic district which rule do they follow?
And if we're more conservative, which I believe on some of our shoreline setback
requirements and I know in the historic district, I've discussed this with Mr. Hunt
previously, because there are some provisions already in the Lahaina Historic District
that you, you know, you'd have to get a variance. I just think it's helpful to the general
public who live in those areas if they're going to come in to compliance and maintain
their flood insurance that I don't want them to have to go through a long protracted
process as far as going for a variance, because our historic district guidelines or our
shoreline setback rules. And I know when a building burns, when there's a certain
replacement of a certain percentage of it there's different applicability. I couldn't quote
you all those rules right now but I know that we're more restrictive. So I, I just want to
be absolutely certain that even if there is a conflict, I want to know which one prevails. If
we're more conservative, which would preclude actually compliance or which may put
this in conflict with what we're looking at now with Federal flood, what prevails?
MR. CERIZO: Well, typically, you know, the, the more restrictive prevails. But, you know, as
far as the specific, your specific questions on historic, we do have a section in the Code
that and most of these would be considered existing structures since they're historic.
There are provisions in the Code that addresses substantial improvements that are done to
historic structures. And there is some protection if the structure itself because if you had
to raise it up ten feet it would just really change the whole scheme of the historic
structure that it allows you to retain just the existing structure. In other words, you know,
you won't have to raise it up. If it's going to, if it's going to change it so much that it
won't be historic anymore that would be permitted. Now I'm not sure...on Page 3
there's a section on, on a historic structure and it, and it indicates that...let's see...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I see it, it's...
MR. CERIZO: It actually defines the structure but under substantial improvements that's
where...let's see if there's any changes to that Code.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I, and I see this but, you know, historic structure means
that it's listed, you know, in the national register, it has all the criteria. But many times,
you know, you may have structures that have not applied for that designation, they just
happen to exist within the historic district. And under historic district guidelines even the
appearance, the height, you know, if it's one story or if it's...I mean there are people that,
you know, get after-the-fact permits. But I, I just, I guess for my purposes because I have
not had an opportunity I'm just asking you if you have gone through this to make sure
that all of these dovetail so that there's no inconsistencies that are created when we're
applying these ordinances. And if there would be, if the individual wants to get Federal
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flood coverage but we don't permit them to do certain things in order to come into
compliance with these new standards that are being applied, how do we address that or
how do they address it? Or do they just not, are they not covered by Federal flood?
MR. CERIZO: Typically, if...a variance may be required and that's, I'm trying to check to see
the, the current Code if a variance is required under the, when you have a historic
structure, for example, you have historic structure that is a substantial improvement.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and once again I'll say some of these are over 50 years
old but they're not going to meet the definition of historic structure, you know, because
they would not necessarily be placed on a State inventory, they wouldn't be covered
under an approved State program. There are many structures within Lahaina Historic
District that are not going to meet this criteria. So I just ask it and if, you know, if...I
guess what I'm saying is that if we have not considered the unintended consequence that
we may be actually preventing some individuals from obtaining Federal flood, because
we're creating an inconsistency by adopting this with historic district guidelines or, you
know, other ordinances that we may already have on the books that are more restrictive
than this. So I just, you know, I put it out there because I really don't know the answer.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, do you want to answer that question?
MR. HUNT: We need to keep in mind that we're not adopting a new ordinance. This ordinance
has been in effect for, for decades. All we're doing is updating the ordinance and
particularly the maps. Some of the questions you ask should, in all likelihood would be
addressed by the existing ordinance that has a variance provision, and that variance
provision is pertinent just to the floodplain compliance. And then we also have the
general variance provisions for the entire Code. So between those two variance
provisions I would imagine that most scenarios that we could come up with would, would
have some kind of leniency. But again, we're not starting from scratch, all we're doing is
updating an existing ordinance.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. No. I, I realize that, you know. And I didn't mean to imply
that we are creating a new ordinance. The ordinance is just being brought into
compliance with what the Federal requirements are, and in order to get Federal flood you
have to update. So I mean I used to sell insurance so I know about Federal flood. That's
not the problem. My question basically has to do with has this been checked for
consistency with any other ordinances that we may have on the books, whether they're in
the historic district, whether they're in the Special Management Area or other areas that
exist? Grading ordinance being one, height limitations being another 'cause I know that
those things exist. So I just want to make sure that someone, at some point in time, who
is an expert in this area has looked at that and done a consistency check. Because the
unintended consequence would be that if someone cannot get there from where they are
right now because we have this inconsistency, then my concern is would they actually be
placed in a predicament where the bank would no longer carry their mortgage because
they couldn't qualify for Federal flood or they were unable to obtain it? So I want to
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know that there's a process though in place that protects them so that they're not going to
find themselves in an untenable position.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAI 'ALA: Okay. Can, -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --Department, can you answer that?
MR. HUNT: How I would respond is because the ordinance has been in existence for, for
decades, I don't recall to the best of my knowledge of somebody being precluded from
the participation in the FEMA program and the flood insurance rates. Now you can ask
the question has somebody crosschecked the, the ordinances? And I'm not sure we've
gone to that elaborate of a detail, but again given our history of the implementation,
administration of the existing bill and the fact that there's variance provisions in the, both
the, the floodplain zone and the overall zoning ordinance I think we can comfortably say
that those scenarios should be taken of
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I totally understand what you're saying. I'm not
saying that this is a new ordinance. But all I'm saying is that when I look at the new
verbiage which is underlined, new construction, substantial improvements. There are
some fairly direct statements about flood elevation, what you have to do, breakaway
walls, adding to the height. You know, those are things that are red flags for me, because
there's similar things that we have adopted in the interim that...I don't know, I mean fine
if, fine, if, if it says that the County can do, you know, if it's, if this is in conflict with
whatever the County rules and regulations are that the County ordinances if we're more
restrictive they shall apply and they'll still be covered under Federal flood, fine. But
because there are changes and particularly in the alterations and in the construction that
are a little bit different from what are currently, that's my only question.
MR. CERIZO: Well, getting back to the specific question on the historic portion of your, your
question here. The, our Code proposes no changes to the definition of historic. The, the
major change is in substantial improvement, and that's on Page 6 on your definition of
substantial improvement. It, what we have here is that instead of having... we're looking,
we added the cumulative provision where instead of you coming in and, and building
your dwelling or your structure and having it change every, every, once a year, we're,
we're saying that you have to lump all those costs and once you hit the 50 percent you
need to improve. If you look on the last provision of that section there on the definition,
on item number two, it, the provision on historic structures have not changed, and it
indicates here, any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alterations will not
preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure. So this, this
indicates that this term does not apply to that types of alteration. So there's no change as,
as of now for any historic structure that's in, in Lahaina or in any, any area.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And this definition of historic structure matches the County's
definition of historic structure?
MR. CERIZO: Well, let me check.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You can check it later then. I, I don't want to take up all, I don't
want to monopolize.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You know but these are just questions that I'm going, I'm sure I'm
going to be asked, and I just want to make sure that we've done our due diligence. Thank
you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: While they're reviewing that then I'm going to allow Member
Molina to ask his questions followed by Member Nishiki and then Medeiros. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Question for the Department. So just
to kind of cut through the chase, so basically we have no choice almost. We got to
support these amendments. And am I correct? Maybe I'm wrong. When I think of
FEMA I think of Katrina. Maybe this is as a, kind of a...Katrina was sort of the impetus
for all these proposed amendments and not only for Maui County but throughout nation.
Am I correct in making that assessment?
MR. CERIZO: Yes. That's the same organization or Federal agency that manages the
floodplain management, floodplain regulations and also the National Flood Insurance
program.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. So it seems like it's beneficial for us. I guess it
would maybe, could improve our Community Rating System to go from an eight to a six
meaning more savings for all of the policyholders, the over 12,000, 12,214
policyholders? Is that correct?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. So I guess we, we just put ourselves...if we
don't do anything on this, then we put all of these policyholders in jeopardy then, I
guess?
MR. CERIZO: That's, that's also correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. All right. It just sounds, it sounds simple but yet,
you know, almost too good to be true in some ways, especially when you get proposals
coming down from the Federal government. But anyway just want to...I think it's okay
to scrutinize it at the same time, but, you know, it sounds like we really have almost no
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choice on this, Mr. Chairman. So we'll, we'll see what happens. And one more question,
with regards to the incorporation of the new online digital flood insurance rates...was it
rate maps? Now that is, the cost for that is borne by who? Is that, that's us or the
Federal?
MR. CERIZO: The online maps are actually developed by the, the Federal government.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. CERIZO: They have, what we have here is a, is a, an adaptation of those maps. They
incorporate...the State has a contract as a service to the counties develop these maps as a
service to, so that you can better view the information. The original flood maps...I'm not
sure if anyone's familiar with the old paper maps, where it's a USGS map and it's a
1,000 scale and it's very difficult to measure. In, in, on these maps here, the, the maps
are, are, are very accurate as far as the best, the best layer on the map is actually the
imagery and second is the, the flood mapping itself. The, the worst layer--and that's what
a lot of people see is the layers--is the property layers, and if you put the imagery on top
of the, the property layer there's... it could be off by 100 feet. So we always inform the
property owners to have this confirmed by the, by a surveyor. But it's definitely a better
product.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And again that, the cost is Feds not us, right? We don't
get a cost?
MR. CERIZO: The cost is, is free to us.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. That sounds good to me. Thank you, Mr. Cerizo.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Funny that we're asking about maps because I was looking at
these maps that you gave to us and I was looking at the print. Even with my oriental
eyes, tell me if you guys can read it? You can't read nothing. Okay. That's not the point
that I want to bring up -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --but the point that I want to bring up is the existing map,
despite that you tell me it was on a USGS, paper, whatever, I don't care about that. I
want to know what was the existing map and what is the new map and if there is any, can
we produce an overlay map? And the reason why I say this is because do you find that
the boundaries of the new map are encompassing more land area? And to me if one plus
one is two and I know that tides are rising and the County has done studies about erosion
and everything else, we should be concerned. So is there an overlay map that we can
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look at from what the new map says compared to the old map? And does it include more
areas?
MR. CERIZO: The answer is yes to both questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. CERIZO: These maps are actually the paper maps and they actually are six times bigger.
So you will have this huge foldouts, and it'd be a good 20 pounds to carry the full set of
maps.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. CERIZO: So the, the maps that are online they, the, the State took this information--and
this is all based on GIS--they took the layers and they placed it on a, on a map that can be
really read, as you saw on our presentation. And on the layers list that we're looking at
there's topo and there's hurricane. There's also the existing map so you actually could
overlay both maps on there. And there is definitely a change, you can see that, and it's
mostly mirroring what was there before. So if you see a coastal flooding it actually,
it...because of the map accuracy, you know, we're looking at a USGS quad, that was the
base map and now you're looking at a map that is, you can measure it down to a foot.
The other one was a scale of one to 1,000 foot. So now, you know, it's the, with the
better information available you can get, you can get a better map and, and definitely
there's a change due to those...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and let me ask you, I mean, you can, you can talk
to me about all of these maps but I don't have it, I got this in front of me. I don't see
where the overlay is. But let me ask you in a given area have you noticed how deep these
changes may have gone? Like say, here's where my property was in the flood area. Has
it gone a half mile in, a quarter mile in to whereby existing structures that were not in a
flood area may now be in it? Okay. So now they're caught in this getting insurance and
making changes, or as you have on this cover letter, July 30 th , you know, as Mr. Molina
talked about, the County would be subject to suspension from the Flood Insurance
program, fails to adopt the required revisions, it goes on and on, addition, flood
insurance, to NFIP would not be available and no Federal grants or loans for acquisition
or construction of buildings, that flood hazard area could be made. So this is pretty heavy
hitting, okay. But now they want to increase it and they have justification for it, okay.
How much have you seen from this past map, the old map to now, and what was that
time? Is it an annual thing that this goes through review?
MR. CERIZO: Well, this map is our first major comprehensive revision. The last time...our
original map was...that's created in 1981 and it was based on data that was gathered
around in 1975. So, and it's based on a, one, a USGS map. And the changes that I've
seen and what we've, what we had one of our staff do, we actually re-evaluated that,
those changes. Most of the changes are a movement like on the, on the coastal area, it's a
-
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slight movement to adjust to where the shoreline is. Otherwise, on the original map you
could be all in the ocean, you know, where there's no land. So the map was actually,
with the same shape was pushed inland so that it mirrors the coastal area, and what I've
seen, 50 feet maybe would be the areas on the coast. There's some other areas that when
the maps were re-issued they try to use whatever information they have to actually set it
correctly. They have imagery and then sometimes the County did do an extensive
LIDAR mapping which provided topography, and they use those tools also to, to, to
adjust the map area. So those were, most of those were minor changes, 50, I think 50 feet
was probably the most. In fact I have copies of all the areas that we, that we did find
those changes, and we found a lot in Hana. In fact in Hana we have whole streams that
are added on. So these areas that was added on is, it's more an approximate method,
approximate flood zone. But still if you're in that flood zone your house, you know, they
can have and it's...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Consequences.
MR. CERIZO: Consequences, yeah. It can be very expensive. So we're...are...one of our main
objectives are our public outreaches to, to inform the public. It's now, now is the time to
get your, your flood insurance, because you may be able to lock in to the pre-existing
flood zone. If you're in a flood Zone X or C where you can get very minimal flood
insurance, you may be able to lock in at a low price versus when you're in the high
hazard area it can go up to, and what we've seen in our, our review can go up to nearly
400 percent in the A-Zone for a commercial property -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. CERIZO: --and if you're in a V-Zone--I'm sorry, for ...(change tape, start 2A)... a
residential property--if you're in a V-Zone, which is high hazard along the coast, on the
commercial side, it can go up as much as 640 percent. So those are really, we, we sent it
out in, in newspaper and we were in the news last, last week so we had some good press.
In fact today is...we have a major outreach in Kihei and with all that press we hope to
have a big crowd so that's where I'm going to go right after this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Now, when is...you may not know this, but is it by law
that they have a next map that may happen? I heard the gentleman say this is subject to
many more changes. He was concerned about it. But do you know when the next study
is going to be done and then a map may now change?
MR. CERIZO: Well, map changes are, are either initiated by the County where we provide a
request to FEMA to upgrade certain areas that have approximate zone, flood zones. You
know there's, there's several types of flood zones on the maps. One is there's a "A"
numbered zones or "A" alpha zones which is like "AE". It tells you when you have a
suffix after the "A" or "V" you have a, there's base flood elevations that have been
determined. When you have a A-Zone or a V-Zone which has no suffix, that indicates
that there is, we know your, they know we're flooded but there's no detailed study. So
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all of those "A" unnumbered or "V" unnumbered zones are potential candidates for
restudies and it's on money available on a yearly basis. In, in the case of Mr. Currier
where he had a...the methodology on that, on that stream is, is being questioned. FEMA
is actually, has looked at it and we are, we'll be discussing them further to, to re-look at
that map and perhaps have that revised.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So the existing 12,214 flood insurance policies -MR. CERIZO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --this is what you say as of July 30 th . Could it be that there will
now be more flood insurance policies because the maps have changed? And so even if
you said that and, and, and I may misunderstand you, okay. But you, you seem to say
from what came out of your mouth that the most you've seen in any area enlarging itself,
becoming bigger was 50 feet. Is that what you said?
MR. CERIZO: Okay. Those are when you look at the old maps and you look at the, the new
maps when they, they shift. How much does it shift? And I was saying, well,
approximately 50 feet more or less. But they, we do have three major areas that had, that
had restudies so these are totally brand new maps.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Whoa.
MR. CERIZO: Yeah. So these areas...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What are the three areas?
MR. CERIZO: Three areas is, is Waikapu and that extends from above Waikapu Town and goes
all the way down to, down to Kihei. Next one is Kamaole Gulch and that's the same
gulch that Maui Coast Hotel is on. So that goes up to above the highway and it comes
down, down to the shoreline. And the third area is on Kanani Road and Auhana Road.
You know there was a gulch, the gulch that goes into Charley Young Bridge. That area
is, has been restudied and what we, just doing a rough count, we have approximately
between those two, those three properties almost, a little over 200. Those are the remap
areas that has detailed studies. Now the areas that are approximate zones we have many
areas that, that, and we didn't have a chance to count those, but numerous ones in, in
Hana. We found them in Molokai and a lot of times on, on Molokai they actually
extended the flood limits of the flood zone another 100 or 200 feet mauka. We have one,
another change in, near Polo Beach where that Polo Beach Club next to the Kea Lani
Hotel. At one time that area was un-flooded but due to a levy break there or a new
restudy they have that area, and that's one of them that, you know, if you're in a, in a
high hazard zone that is the one that could be a 640 percent increase in insurance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In insurance.
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MR. CERIZO: Yeah. That, that's, that turns out to about, I think $3,000 a month insurance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And those three new areas that you talked about despite that
you mentioned Waikapu it goes all the way down to the ocean?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so these 200 particular, not parcels, structures already
built, yes?
MR. CERIZO: Okay. It's, it's, see we didn't, we didn't look at if there was structures on a
property, but every one of the properties that were included in the flood zone we, we
attempted to send letters out. And we sent out nearly 1,400 letters. Not all of the letters
got to them because, you know, how the people, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and these 200 may not have been in one time in a
flood zone?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct. And they could be...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's a big impact.
MR. CERIZO: That's correct. So that's why we're having more outreaches.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and, and, and, and, and that's right, you know, they
said, well, this is a law so we got to follow this, you know, and, and I guess we've got to
accept it otherwise people ain't going to be able to get insurance. But if this is occurring,
Chair, I think you guys need to really find out what's occurring here, because now that
we have these maps and now that they're going to be under this flood insurance area we
need to be concerned about the construction that we're, we're going to allow in these
areas too. Like Mr. Cerizo said, he's not really sure. He just knows it's 200 parcels.
He's not really sure whether there's any construction going on it right now. But if these
people never were in there and now they are going to, then they're going to have to be
concerned about meeting what they can and what they cannot do as far as height and
everything else. Is this true?
MR. CERIZO: The, any new construction, once the map information was available to the
County -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. CERIZO: --as soon as the map was available to the County we informed the owners is that,
that's the map we're going to use. Even though it's preliminary we indicated that this,
your, your lots are...the best available information that we have, it shows that you're
going to be in the flood zone and this is the flood elevation that you should be meeting.
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So we have, you know, over the, over the, the, since the map was available early part of
last year, I mean I'm sorry, the later part of last year we have implemented, used the
flood information as a means to construct any new structures.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and, Mr. Chairman, the, the important part about
this, Mr. Cerizo, is this. I don't know how you're going about contacting them, and
tonight you'll find out maybe 100 people received it. So what about your notification? Is
it to whereby you have, they have acknowledged receipt of a notification that they fall
under this new flood concern? Have you 200 receipts of people that own the property
acknowledging that they received it and now they know?
MR. CERIZO: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So they may be in for a surprise when they pick up their
building permit or whatever and you tell them. And, and, Mr. Chairman, despite that
we've got to follow this law I think that this County has got to be, do a better job in
notification. This is a major impact on 200 residences big time. Big, big, big, big, big
time. And so this is...we should take this seriously because...I don't know the families.
What if they...not, not that I make a distinction between kamaaina families or not
kamaaina families but, you know, I just want to know through this Committee that
everyone's going to be notified.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that is, has to be done and we need to get a report from
this Administration or Planning Department, whoever's in charge that, yes, Wayne, or
yes, Committee, we contacted everyone and there was a mailer done or whatever. Right
now, uh...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. At this point, Wayne, the Chair doesn't have any, any
more information about that -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --process and it's the Department's responsibility. I do hope
that you got answers to your questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. Yeah. And, and, you know what's nice, -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you know, is like it was honest and, and the answers we got
gave us, to me, the information that we need to a better job. Because there's big impacts
right now, big impacts.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Director.
MR. HUNT: Commissioner [sic] Nishiki, what Francis was trying to say is we, we did send out
letters to each of the property owners that was identified as being subject to a map
change. He went on to say that we haven't received confirmation back from them, but
that doesn't mean they haven't received it. In all likelihood several of them just haven't
gotten around to it or, or it hasn't registered on their mind. So the Department and the
County, as a result, has contacted every individual property owner who's subject to a map
change.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, you've made that, that, that contact, Jeff. You know
what? If there's one thing I don't want to do, is I want to have some kind of a honest
relationship with you guys, okay, so that we're not trying to play games, you know. And,
and so, you know, it's like how have you contacted them? You know have you, did it a
registered mail? And I think this would be the best way, that it's registered, you know, so
that we know that they've received it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki, let me...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. Just the last question, okay, just because he said it. Okay.
Let me ask you this, if you did send out 200, how many have responded?
MR. CERIZO: We sent out approximately...our regional outreach we sent out 1,400 letters.
And the reason why we sent 1,400 letters is that there was besides the Waikapu and like
two Kihei areas, lao Stream was also subject to a map change but that has been put into
abeyance, because the levy that was deemed to be not acceptable was, was, was given
the, an extension. So the, so that's, a lot of it was, was sent out on the Wailuku side and
the Iao Stream. So we, we sent out also letters on, on Molokai. So the total amount of all
the letters that we sent out is 1,400 letters, and these were notices to individuals to come
and attend our outreach.
Our original outreach was in, in December and we had nearly 70 or so participants, and
today we sent out, we didn't send any more notices out. We're trying to get them
through, through that regular outreach through press releases, and, and we did have some
news on, on the television last week Friday. And we could, well, right now we're gonna
do, do it on Molokai because the commissions on Molokai asked, you know, does the,
did, they felt that I should do more. So we're going to do Molokai for the third time and
all of this before the September 25 E " deadline to, to inform the public, you know, it's, it's,
this is the best time to get your insurance. If you don't have insurance, now is the time.
And if you're, if you're in a flood map, you know, it's, it's online so we want to get the,
the information that you saw on our presentation was a live presentation. So everyone
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has an opportunity to actually go online and check themselves. Maybe we should do that
maybe, maybe on a weekly basis. Have you checked your flood zone? And that's
something that perhaps we can do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and, and, and that's fine that you're making this
effort. But I think, and I think I know...let me ask you the question about the people on
Molokai. Was it also about notification?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, excuse me, Department and Member. I don't think
that the, that the bill itself is talking about notification. So I just want to restate that I
don't think that's what we're here for. We're here to look at what the bill actually
represents. It's identifying areas and it's making sure that the newly identified areas that
are placed on a new map that's being amended to the bill that people make aware, that the
Department make aware to the, the residents that if you fall within these zones, then you
should be a participant in perhaps looking at any kinds of reductions for insurance if
you're identified. So...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. No. No. That's fine. Mr. Chairman, I don't want to
argue that point.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. I want, I want to give other Members an opportunity -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. That's fine. I'm just-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --to ask questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --saying that the bill also recognizes 200 new ones and that
we're just trying to find out if they've been notified. That's it. I'm done.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Member Medeiros, followed by
Member Victorino, and then Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And I, I want to pose some
questions related to the, the presentation and so forth. You did say to one of the
Members that the maps are produced by the Federal government. Is that with input from
our own GIS?
MR. CERIZO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. So how do they get the local knowledge and
information?
MR. CERIZO: The maps are, most of the maps are actually done, was done in the early '80s,
'81.
- 23 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 17,2009

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But we upgrading the maps, right?
MR. CERIZO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So where does the local knowledge come from?
MR. CERIZO: The, whenever there's a remapped area and there's...since '81 there has been
changes to the maps. You know, we have one every few years.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Now my question is where does the local knowledge
come from?
MR. CERIZO: The local knowledge, whenever there's a restudy done, it's done by a, a
contractor, and typically you have a contractor that's, that's from Hawaii, that in the past
I've seen like R.M. Towill or some of these larger firms that have, sometimes they have
these joint ventures with other companies to, to develop these maps. So they're the local
contact in Hawaii. They come out, they actually visit the site and, I actually assisted the,
the contractor, the site contractor to go on, on these reaches.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So it's good to know that there's some local contact
and local knowledge. My next question is connected actually with our other agenda item
but, you know, we're talking about hazard flood areas and the maps. So were these maps
provided to GPAC in their deliberations?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MR. HUNT: I don't believe the updated maps were. The, the concept of having floodplain
zones and protection in those areas I believe is addressed in the General Plan update.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And that's addressed by the existing maps and not the new
maps?
MR. HUNT: Just the concept in general that we should protect these areas.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so in, in doing that and providing the
information is, is it a comprehensive planning of addressing the urgency or the severity of
identifying these areas and planning accordingly?
MR. HUNT: The, the plan has three levels and the level before you today is the Countywide
Plan which speaks to broad general concepts. It would be appropriate in a Countywide
Plan to have a policy saying we should regulate development within our floodplains.
And I don't know the exact language in the Countywide Plan but it is something to that
effect to the best of my knowledge.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MR. HUNT: Once we get to the community plan levels then we'll get more specific mapping
and implement that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So at the island level plans and the community plans it
becomes more specific that these maps play a more important part of it?
MR. HUNT: Particularly at the community plan level.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Help me understand non-substantial
improvements. Is it those that are not covered by substantial improvements?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct. Non-substantial improvements, well, let's just define what
substantial improvements are. Substantial improvements are when you meet a certain
threshold.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Threshold, money-wise or -MR. CERIZO: Money-wise, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --or square foot wise?
MR. CERIZO: It's the, the current definition of substantial improvement is that when you
exceed 50 percent of the market value of a structure that structure needs to be upgraded.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MR. CERIZO: Market value has a, has a different term that most people understand. It's, it's
actually like actual cash value of the structure. If you had a old house that was here in
Wailuku, it's the same cost of that whole house on a beachfront property. So, so once
you exceed the 50 percent you would need to improve the structure and bring it up to
County standards.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And under 50 percent is considered a
non-substantial improvement?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. In your presentation you showed a slide with a
house adjacent to a flood, flood area. And that if fill was, you know, put in then it
increases the height of the flood area. So if homes are allowed to be built adjacent to
flood areas are they also allowed to construct retaining walls that would increase the
height of the flood area?
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MR. CERIZO: Typically any kind of structure that's built in a floodplain has a potential of
changing the flood height. And many times, you know, a lot of these structures are built
without permits and very difficult to, to catch. And most times it's based on a complaint.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. I'm interested in the ocean or the coastal
flooding. So when, when the areas are identified along the coastal areas, construction in
those areas, is that a different requirement on setback from normal code setbacks?
MR. CERIZO: The, the setbacks are based on the current shoreline setback rules, and that's
independent from our, our, it's independent of the coastal flood hazard portion of the, the
proposed ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So if we know that along the certain coastal areas we have
an increase inland of the flood areas why wouldn't that play an important part on
determining setbacks?
MR. CERIZO: Well, the setbacks are, you know, there's certain rules on the shoreline setback.
It's based on the rules that's been adopted by State law and also by our, our commissions.
And right now we have one of the more stringent setback rules in the State whereby it's
based on an erosion rate, and I believe it's a 50-year erosion rate. We have an annual
erosion rate that was after, a product of a study and they, I believe it's 50 years times that.
So, you know, it's well, that is independent from our study. Once you have the setback
then the structure if it's still in the flood zone, the conditions apply.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I just have two more questions if you
will. Who enforces the non-conversion agreement violations? Is that also complaint
driven?
MR. CERIZO: The non-conversion is a new added, it's, will be CRS a, it'll be a requirement. If
it's added into the ordinance that would be required of any, any project that builds in the
flood zone. And typically it's for structures that have a potential of, of rebuilding the, the
storage areas under the structure. So we want to make sure upfront that, you know, these
areas is, is in a floodplain and shouldn't be expanded or converted. And we're, we're
requiring these conversions so...to notify both the current owner and future owners.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So who enforces that?
MR. CERIZO: Our office will.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. The Planning Department. Okay. Finally, you
mentioned that under the new maps, new streams in East Maui, especially Hana had been
added. How is that? I, I never seen new streams created overnight.
MR. CERIZO: Well, on, on the flood maps if you notice the, when Councilman Member Nishiki
asked, do you have a map that can show the new maps and the old maps? So we had our
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staff look at that and we found many areas that are mapped that wasn't mapped before.
So there's a lot of streams in, in Hana, and these, these areas, you know, like even up in
Haleakala or up on the slopes there's a lot of gulches there, deep gulches that has raging,
but it's not mapped. So they designated areas as flood zone. They, they created a, a new
flood hazard area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I think it'd he better to identify what you're saying
as streams that were not mapped. When you say new streams I'm looking for a new
stream in Hana. You know, I don't sec, it takes hundreds if not thousands of years to
carve out the stream bed. So I, I think you should say that unmapped streams. Okay.
And any letters, because you brought up the Hana area, the East Maui district and you
were identifying for Member Nishiki about letters going out to Molokai and were letters
sent out to the East Maui, Hana district?
MR. CERIZO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And why is that?
MR. CERIZO: We haven't...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because you have new streams.
MR. CERIZO: Yeah. No, we haven't planned out that, that outreach yet but that's something
we could, we should consider.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I would encourage you to do so to be proactive
on that and, and not reactive if something happens. But thank you for your responses.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We will send out letters of the new streams.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know the Chair is going to take a 15 minute break so if
we can reconvene at 3:20. Okay. Short recess. . . . (gavel)..
RECESS:

3:06 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:22 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(gavel). . Okay. The Planning Committee will come,
reconvene. Thank you, Members. I know that there are many more questions that want
to be raised here. So if we can continue along this lines. You know, I know that Member
Baisa has to leave at 4:30 and Member Medeiros has to leave at 4:45 as well today. So
what I would like to do is continue on with this. If for some reason we don't complete
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this, then we'll just defer PC-2 altogether, yeah. And then, but otherwise, the Chair
would like to continue moving this along. So we're going to continue with the questions
of the Department, and Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Quickly so that I don't belabor the
point. Mr. Cerizo, am I correct, basically we need to get this done by September 25`" to
be in compliance with the requirements by FEMA?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's no ifs, buts, ors about it. I've been in the business
longer than most guys have been around this room, and so I can, I can say that this will
be good because on the mapping, as you showed me earlier, it does get very specific
which I can attest, Mr. Chair. We used to have these humongous maps, used to open up
and you couldn't figure out if you're going right from left or left from right. Is that not
correct, Mr. Cerizo?
MR. CERIZO: It was really difficult, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very difficult. So I think this does. Mr. Nishiki is correct
when he says there will be because these changes do and I do agree with you,
Mr. Nishiki, does impact people who have not been in flood zones in the past. They now
will be classified as flood zones. But if they are not classified in flood zones and they are
flooded and we haven't let them know they're in a flood zone, then we could be held
liable. Is that not correct, Mr. Cerizo?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this is something, ladies and gentlemen, we got to do.
There's not ifs, buts, ors about it, Mr. Chair. Although we brought up some very, very
valid points about new streams or rediscovery of streams or mapping streams and all this
other stuff the bottom line right now is we have a much better with GIS and satellite
imaging that we now we have a much more accurate mapping system which didn't exist
back in the '70s and '80s when many of these were done. Is that correct?
MR. CERIZO: That's true.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Mr. Chair. I can wait for your recommendation
whenever you're ready to go, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. Not a real question anymore, Chair. I had the opportunity
to talk with Mr. Cerizo on the break. I had some questions about Upcountry and the
flooding that occurred in Hawaiian Homes. But that is, you know, was caused really by a
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different situation where there was drainage that was impeded and that caused it. But
that, that was what I wanted to know. I agree with Mr. Victorino that it appears this has
to be done. And when I look at the difference in insurance quotes between people who
will be able to have coverage grandfathered of about 1,300 a year as opposed to $6,000 a
year I think we just need to do this.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just very quickly.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Did you find the new streams yet? ... (laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: When I came out this morning at 5:00 it was too dark.
Mr. Cerizo, so you're saying that the new maps are online. Is that correct?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Now will the new maps identify previously
unmapped streams as being streams that now are being considered? Is there an
identification on the map for that?
MR. CERIZO: The, the maps that are available will show the actual tax parcels. So you can,
you can actually query the parcel that you're looking for, and, and see if your, the map if
there, a flood map that's... if you're on the stream and it's mapped it will show up on, on
your, on the, on this flood map that's online.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, you know, Mr. Nishiki asked about the
overlays and so forth and you said that was a possibility. So if I overlaid the map on the
website, it would show that the old map had, you know, the streams mapped, and then
now they overlaid the new map, showed the new mapped streams . . .(change tape, start
2B)... so that would become evident?
MR. CERIZO: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. CERIZO: You just need to hit the, turn on both layers and they will, they will be, you'll see
it as layers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Okay.
MR. CERIZO: . (Inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah. Because I mean the, the maps in the binder
are really, you know, difficult to...and because is...are the maps online color?
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MR. CERIZO: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That makes it way better because this black and
white is really hard to follow. But thank you for that information. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA:
... (laughter).. .

It's in color but the overlays are the same color.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, it's not. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real, real quickly. And it's funny we talking about
decreases and . . . (inaudible). . . and I have a memo that just came from one of the major
insurance carriers that do flood insurance and just real quickly. Premiums will average
an 8 percent increase effective October 1 St . Standard rates will increase by 10 percent.
So what we saving here the rates going catch you someplace else. And by the way these
rates are not set by companies. They are set by the National Flood Program. It's not a
matter of you can have a choice on the matter. It is what is set by the Federal government
and the National Flood Program which is what the rates are set by. It's nothing that the
local level or even the insurance companies have any right to do. Is that correct,
Mr. Cerizo?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Member Victorino. The Chair has a question for
the Department, and it was only 'cause in your presentation you had highlighted the
Waikapu Stream. Can you explain to, to, to us why you've identified this specific area?
MR. CERIZO: Well, as far as the, the appeal process, you know, it was during my public review
portion of my presentation, and a lot of the, the maps are, revisions on the maps are, are
posted by FEMA. And it's a, it's a, it's a legal, not legal but it's a newspaper posting
that, that if you want to appeal these maps, you need to appeal it in 30, in, in 90 days.
There was no appeals received but, you know, as far as in Waikapu if there is any appeals
after that appeal period it still can be considered. Maps are changed on a regular basis
and the Waikapu map is an example of a, of that change that you can actually come in
and, and put a request in to have a map change. And that was a good example just to, to
show what the process is like.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then what you are saying then in fact that the maps that
you've just presented as the attachments or even the online maps can be altered then?
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MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Because earlier the question was asked like who, who
drafted these maps? The answer was that it is a FEMA process of which the County had
no part in except that it was contracted and such. But you are saying that if there, there
are people who are not in agreement with the, with the new maps as, as they, as they're
about to be identified and approved by, by our process that there is an appeal process that
they can be engaged in to alter those maps?
MR. CERIZO: Yes. The approved process goes through FEMA that if they agree and concur
with their, with their conclusions or their analysis that the change would be actually
facilitated through a FEMA map, flood map, a LIDAR map revision that is processed
through FEMA. This is not...this is very common. Sometimes developers just wanted to
change their, they want to update the information and they have much, well, they have
updated topo, topography, and based on this topographic information they can develop
both hydrologic or hydraulic data that would, that would refine their flood limits on their
property. And usually these are for larger properties. And so the map revisions process
is, is available to anyone that wants to revise the map.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So if I understand you correctly and then you can clarify this
again. The reason someone would, would move to, to appeal the map itself is because
the areas identified may not necessarily be in agreement with the, the parcel owner, and
that including them in that area, in the inundation of the flood zone might have some,
some economic considerations for the owner or for the developer as you...I mean you use
the term developer that's why I'm, I'm curious. What are, what are you saying?
MR. CERIZO: If a property owner or developer has better information that the map should be
revised and this better information could be a means of different topographic information
or different hydrology or just different information.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So someone would have to come forward with a whole set of
arguments and other information and data that, in order to appeal or contest this?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So how many people are going to be available to do
that kind of work, and then what would be the interest in them having to do such a... are
there any restrictions by, by this map in terms of where one can build or...
MR. CERIZO: Well, the map, the flood map identifies all of the areas that are subject to, to
hazards, riverine or coastal hazards. And the restrictions would be to, if someone wants
to develop that area or build in that area, they would have to comply with the, with the,
the regulations that's set forth in this, in this ordinance.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Members, any further questions? Yes, sir. Go
ahead, Member Medeiros and then Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo. I just want to ask Mr. Cerizo. So for us to access
the new maps online we would go to your website and there's a link? Is that what you
said?
MR. CERIZO: There's, there's several ways of doing it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so what, how would we do it?
MR. CERIZO: The fastest way is just to go to Google -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. CERIZO: --and you can type in the flood hazard assessment tool.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Flood hazard assessment tool.
MR. CERIZO: And just add Hawaii to it and that, that should bring you right to the top of the
list.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that information. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: FEMA updated these maps?
MR. CERIZO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: FEMA then told Maui County that you're in charge of
contacting the various individuals on Lanai, Molokai, and Maui to tell them of the new
mapping?
MR. CERIZO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh.
MR. CERIZO: The, the. the way these maps are, are, are done is that FEMA has certain
regulations as to how to change maps. And their obligation is to, to put out a notice and
that, there's this map change coming up, coming about. And I believe they have just one
notice and they maybe have more but that, that's their legal requirement. The
community, on the other hand, as a, as a, the party that has more stake at it in that, you
know, it's going to affect our community and it's going to affect our people that live here.
-32-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 17,2009

So we as on our own, as part of our program on a voluntary basis we, we want to inform
the people you're going to get flooded and you may have higher insurance. And we want
to have, give them enough time so they can make their adjustments to, to accommodate
either, to get insurance now at a lower rate or if you're building that we want you to build
a house that will be in compliance so that when you, when the, when the zoning does
change that you don't have to have more insurance. Because if you build the property
disregarding the flood zone information, let's say you just build it on the ground and it's
supposed to be built three feet high. See technically you can just build it on the ground
because there's, you're not, you're not in the flood zone yet. But once the map becomes
effective you'll be three feet below the base flow elevation, and that would be an
extremely high cost of getting insurance. So we inform people as, as soon as the maps
were available to build it at, at the correct elevation. So all of this is all part of, on our,
our program it's part of the outreach, it's part of our CRS program to give information
out to the public so that they can better protect themselves in the flood zone. So it's, it's
a proactive means of mitigation.
And we won't, we're, we're, we'll probably do more in the next, in the next month than
we've done in the last, in the last few months, you know, now that we're getting closer.
And people can actually apply their, as long as they get their policy before the effective
date, you know, you can lock in there. So some people just didn't want to like pay the
insurance six months ago when, you know, really it's not, there's no benefit yet. But,
you know, when you get closer to the end now you can save, you know, you can save
$36,000 a year, you know, you can get locked down to a lower rate. And that's like in
the V-Zone, you know, I was talking about. That's the highest cost and that is if someone
has it on the right elevation. A lot of these costs is associated with the, what you're
building is built relative to what height it's supposed to be at. If it's below the, the
required amount, it's going to be a higher cost. If you're higher, you're going to have a
cheaper cost. We want to get that information out to the public that, check your flood
zones, call Mr. Victorino or, you know, some insurance company to, to verify what your
insurance rate's going to be and take appropriate action so you can have some, some
savings.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When did you get notification from FEMA? I was looking at
the different planning commissions. But when did you finally get the mapping and now,
and then with, with the knowledge that there are now new areas?
MR. CERIZO: We had, we've had the map about a year ago.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: One year?
MR. CERIZO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And now that we've got 200 units or parcels in the
Kihei...I don't know how far it goes. Where does it span from? Maalaea to Polo Beach?
It doesn't go all the way to Makena?
MR. CERIZO: I'm sorry, what's the question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know these 200 parcels?
MR. CERIZO: Okay. The, the 200 parcels are spread between, there is Waikapu and Kamaole,
I believe, has the most, they have about 70 or more parcels involved. And then the
Kanani Street where the, that gulch that goes down to Charley Young's [sic] Bridge.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. CERIZO: That, I believe, has about 40 or so. And then there's several more properties that
are not part of the new flood study but they're, I'm sorry, not part of the, the detail study
but are, are those areas that are just like in, like in Hana, you know, there's areas that
were unmapped, streams that were unmapped that are now mapped. And that is spread
throughout the County. Molokai, Lanai has some on the, on the coast. Hana has quite a
bit and it's just spread all the way throughout the island.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And when they identify these new areas they also give
justification, because nowhere in here do I see, oh, your area has been picked. But is
there justification like you're, you're living near a gulch that can flood because now it's
accumulating all from the urban development and it's all going to it, this is one gulch. Is
that, do they give you justification? And that would be given to these people, why?
MR. CERIZO: The, the flood mapping process as, in most cases, you know, we, we kind of, we
ask for certain flood studies to be done above what was existing. And, you know, we've,
we've, Waikapu was one of them. We asked that that area be mapped because of the
people along the stream are living on, along that area. If it's a Zone A, an area of
approximate study and we wanted since people were coming in, see one of the, one of the
disadvantages in being in an approximate A Zone is that you have to make the study. If
I'm in a flood Zone A, it's an area of undetermined flood height. So the homeowner has
to hire an engineer, do the hydrology, do the hydraulics and create his own map for his,
for one parcel. So like other areas on the island whenever there's an A-Zone we try to, as
part of an annual or, or, or map upkeep we try to have those areas restudied so we have
detailed studies. And Waikapu was one that was, that we proposed since it's being,
people want to rebuild, people are, it's being urbanized more and there's, there's
development downstream and upstream of, of Waikapu Town.
We have other areas that we had previous studies in, in Paia and in, in, and in Wailuku
also. So all of these areas have been converted to a area where you have definite flood
zones heights and data that people can build on. And then there's areas there, they, the,
the, FEMA just on their own developed as far as or extending the stream reach above.
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And, you know, there's no, there was no reason why they had...you know, I'm not sure
why they created those maps. But it was just a matter of, just like the original maps we
had no input, they just created maps along the coastal areas back in '81. You know, most
of it was in the, near the urban core where development was most likely to happen. And,
you know, those inputs, we had minimal input on those maps. Yeah. It's probably, you
know, they put the maps where you're going to develop, and as far as the Hana area I'm
not sure how they expanded that area.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh. So despite that they created these maps they also were
nice enough to ask the County what you thought about these areas? And, and then you
had the opportunity to comment? Yeah?
MR. CERIZO: We, yes, whenever there's a map redone they ask us, they ask us to review the
map. In some areas it's...in other areas we, they asked us, you know, where, what areas
do you want to have remapped and we would put, we have a list of areas that we want to
have remapped.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Well, I, I just hope you're, you're armed when you go
and meet people that are going to be affected that you have good explanations. Because I
think that to just arbitrarily create a map and then you given the opportunity to interact
with FEMA not having any answers to give to the general public or those that are being
affected, I think, for me anyway, would be not acceptable, not acceptable. 'Cause I think
that if these 200 new people are going to be affected now every one of them is going to
be paying a high insurance rate compared to not being in a flood zone. So please have
justification. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Before we move on to the Chair's
recommendation I would just like the, the Department to explain one more time the time
sensitivity of this, this matter.
MR. CERIZO: The, FEMA has informed us that, that we are required to adopt a revised or
update our flood map, flood insurance, flood ordinance to meet the minimum
requirements of FEMA. And the deadline for that adoption of the Code revisions is
September 25, 2009. If we do not adopt the, the ordinance or our ordinance being not
consistent with FEMA it's, we are subject to suspension from the program. There is
potential loss of people to get flood insurance and hence loans from the, any
Federal-insured bank. It also may affect our ability to have flood disaster funds. This,
this is the same, same requirement when the first ordinance was adopted in 1981, and it
stated that for the same reasons if you don't...failure to participate in the program would
result in these, in these actions. So it hasn't changed for over 30 years. It's the same
program, and they, they want to see our ordinance updated before any new maps are
adopted.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Cerizo. Then the, the Chair's
recommendation at this time was, would be that we pass this out for first reading and then
we file the communications.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And along with that I would request that the Staff be
authorized to incorporate technical revisions to the bill for consistency and accuracy.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. I'll also include that because I believe they were also noted by
the Planning Department. There were some modifications that they needed to make.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think with those sections, I don't know if we need to make a formal
amendment.
MR. HUNT: You're referring to the proposed amendments that Francis mentioned earlier?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. I'm talking about the elimination of those particular sections to
be in, I, guess sync with what is consistent with our current practice.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Mr. Chair, I second the motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member Johnson that we pass this out for
first reading, file the communications and then ask Staff to be authorized to incorporate
technical revisions for the bill. Seconded by Member Baisa. Members, any discussion
on the motion? Member Medeiros, followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Not so much, well, I guess it is connected to the motion.
But could I ask the Planning Department a question? Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. You know the maps that you incorporated in our
binders, these are just sample maps? 'Cause with a magnifying glass I determined it was
all of Molokai island and not. . .
MR. CERIZO: Yeah. The, the, Molokai Planning Commission requested, after deferring the,
our, our, the, the matter for the second meeting that they provide maps, that we provide
maps to them. So I provided, these are the reduced copies so that it could fit into your
report.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So they're just samples -MR. CERIZO: They're just samples.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --of Molokai?
MR. CERIZO: Because they, the actual copies that they got was 1 1 x17 which is still smaller
than the full size which is I believe two feet by three feet.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that information. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Nishiki, discussion on the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Just my concern as a public servant and County
government in general when we are going to impact the citizens of this County, and in
this situation a big way. The timing, one year ago, the deadline, you know, you got, you
got me having to agree. And yet I, I would think that notification, Jeff, can be improved.
You know you're asking me to pass something out and yet you're still going to go meet
with some people in Kihei today. Mr. Cerizo said something about Molokai and some of
the concerns and Mr. Medeiros having to go figure out what the maps are so, because he
heard that his community in areas near streams are going to be impacted. So makes our
job much easier if, you know, things like this are done in a way in which we as the
policymakers and the people that are being affected by this act here, who are going to
bear the burden of having to pay money. I think it's just fair that we pass the law whether
it be from the Federal government or whatever that our citizenry be able to at least
comment or find answers. Today, you know what you're going to tell them? You're
going to tell them we got a deadline, if we don't pass this out, we may not be able to get
money from the Federal government, you may not be able to get insurance. So what?
And the poor people are going to be on their hands and knees, calluses and everything
else on their elbows going, oh, please, almighty one, pass it out and even it affects me I
have to agree. You know, it's wrong. That's all. You know, that's not how I see
government operating. You know, we're servants of these people and if we really see
ourselves as the servants, then we should be on our knees talking to them and saying hey,
you know, it's kind of a late notice but we apologize. Anyway that's my concern,
Mr. Chairman. I don't, -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I'm not happy.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. You know, just to support Member Nishiki, this Chair
just wants to reiterate that this item was sent to the full Council on August 7 th , and if we
do not hear it at this time as you've indicated their timelines for September will not be
met by this Council. So it does put us in a very difficult position. I'm hoping that
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regardless you've had a chance to fully understand and have a chance to talk about what
the bill entails, and that would be the, the responsibility of all of us. So, so it is my
recommendation that we, we pass this out so that we can not only meet the deadlines but
we can also simultaneously continue the work that the Department has to do with making
notifications. So, so having discussions said.. .
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I just wanted to say I, I will support this only because we don't
really have a choice. I mean it, it is what it is and all of it's oogies [sic] and flaws and
whatever and how it came to be. It's just not government at its best. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair, for my second opportunity. I just
wanted to know when were these new updated maps completed and received by the
County?
MR. CERIZO: The preliminary maps were received in, in June of last year, and it was put out
for initial comments on the, by the County. After that it was published by FEMA as a,
for appeal, and after, after reviewing all the, any questions that any, any, any person may
have the maps were finalized in March of this year, the final form. And the, the final
map, the, the documents that we had is, the current map is actually the, the current draft is
actually online. And I've heard that the...which includes the final form, they will take
out the preliminary, right now we see preliminary across the screen but on October,
September 25 th preliminary...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Became permanent?
MR. CERIZO: Yeah. Preliminary will be taken off. And perhaps for the time being I think we
should maybe recommend that we keep the two layers, so people can see the difference
between the two so that they can make the assessment that they're new so they should be
able, they should...it's a good flag to actually...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Cerizo, yeah, you answered my question. I
wanted to know when the maps became available to the County, and when did the
County receive the schedule, the deadline that this was supposed to be done?
MR. CERIZO: The overall...these things usually take about a year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. When did the Federal government notify the Planning
Department that this was supposed to be completed by September of this year? And the
maps were conclude, I mean, completed last year. So I'm, I'm asking because, you
know, I can understand the Chair's recommendation because of the time restraint. But I
also understand Member Nishiki's concern that how much time did we have to talk to the
people and to notify them about the possible impacts on them? So when did the County
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receive correspondence from the Federal government that this was, the deadline was
September of this year?
MR. CERIZO: The, the schedule was given to us the same time we got the maps in June.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so, and when did the Planning Department send
this communication ...(change tape, .start 3A). . . for consideration to be deferred to
Committee, referred to Committee to the Council Chair?
MR. CERIZO: It was sent the end, the end of July.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So why did the time from last year June or whenever
you said to July, why wasn't it sent earlier, so we would have more time to deliberate on
this being that it's, you know, potential impacts on the people?
MR. CERIZO: Yeah. We could have done it better but we didn't. And it's due to, as, well, for,
for me, you know, I drafted the bill, and it was just the, the time constraint on, on getting
the bill drafted and having it reviewed and it just took longer than we expected.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But do you agree that Planning Department had a year or
more in order to get this done and submitted to the Council Chair for referral to
Committee? Because we're kind of, 1 agree with Member Nishiki, we're like forced to,
you know, have to support it because we don't want to miss the deadline. But it would
have been great because of this urgency and potential impacts on people to have gotten it
earlier, so we could have deliberated for several meetings or whatever it was required.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Medeiros,
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --Chair's going to interrupt. We're in discussions on the
motion. At this point -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --we're, we're asking the Department further questions. So
I'm going to move to, to just call for -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, thank, thank -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --you for my opportunity.

-39-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 17, 2009

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So all those in favor of the motion signify by saying
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, say no? Okay. Seeing none, then the motion is
carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki, Victorino,
Vice-Chair Johnson, and Chair Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you very much.
ITEM NO. 2: GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (C.C. No. 07-54)
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, it is 4:00 and we are going to be losing Members in
a half an hour. So what is the pleasure of the, the body?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Defer.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --defer.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Defer.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: DEFER, NO DISCUSSION.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then I'm going to ask the Department and, and Simone
to, thank you for your presence today and I'm sorry that this item took much more time
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then we anticipated, but we're going to defer PC-2 to our next scheduled meeting. And
on that note, Members, we are trying to coordinate and continue with our Molokai, our
Hana, and our Lanai meeting on this same item. So I would like your cooperation with
Staff to try and see if we can schedule it in the best manner we can to give those
communities an opportunity, as well, to hear this item before them as, as we continue in
the process. So your cooperation would be greatly needed. Thank you for that. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then this brings us then to the end of our meeting today and
thank you very much. This meeting is now adjourned. . . .(gavel).
.
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